
T O W N  O F  B E L G R A D E  

Meeting Agenda 
BOARD OF SELECTPERSONS 

NOVEMBER 21, 2023 / REGULAR MEETING 6:30 P.M. 
BELGRADE TOWN OFFICE 

This meeting will be conducted in person. The public may also view the meeting and participate online 
at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Establish quorum. 

Open Meeting 

1. Public Comment 

2. Review and approve minutes of November 8, 2023 

3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Appointments/Resignations 

B. Presentation from MainePERS – Deanna Doyle 

C. Road Name Change 

D. Facilities equipment needs – Cory Alexander 

E. Abatements and Supplementals 

F. Diversity Resolution 

5. OTHER BUSINESS 

6. WARRANTS  

7. TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)A – personnel matter, if needed.  

 
 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984


Memo 
_______________________________ 

Minutes 

 

Review and approve minutes of November 8, 2023. 



Page 1 of 3 
 

T O W N  O F  B E L G R A D E  

Meeting Minutes 
BOARD OF SELECTPERSONS 

NOVEMBER 8, 2023  
EXECUTIVE SESSION 6:30 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
BELGRADE TOWN OFFICE 

This meeting was conducted in person, the public may view the meeting online at 

 

In attendance: Chair Barbara Allen, Vice Chair Carol Johnson, Selectperson Melanie Jewell, Selectperson 
Peter Rushton, Kathy Atkinson, Diane Oliver, Lynn Matson, Phyllis Matson, Christine Emmons, Eric Houglund, 
Bruce Galouch, Craig Alexander, Ken Scheno. Selectperson Daniel Newman at 7:15 p.m. 
 
Remote participants: Richard Bourne, Cory Alexander. 
 
Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance at 6:30 p.m. by Chair Barbara Allen. 
 
Quorum established. 
 
Open Meeting 
 
Motion to exit regular session at 6:32 p.m. by Chair Barbara Allen, seconded by Selectperson Peter 
Rushton, vote 4-0 with 1 absent. 
 
Motion to enter executive session pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. subsection 405(6)(c) – real estate, economic 
development at 6:32 p.m. by Chair Barbara Allen, seconded by Selectperson Melanie Jewell, vote 4-0 
with 1 absent. 
 
Motion to exit executive session at 6:59 p.m. by Chair Barbara Allen, seconded by Selectperson Peter 
Rushton, vote 4-0 with 1 absent. 
 
Motion to enter regular session at 6:59 p.m. by Chair Barbara Allen, seconded by Selectperson Peter 
Rushton, vote 4-0 with 1 absent. 
 

No action taken. 
 
Public Comment ~ none 
 
Review and approve minutes of October 17, 2023 
 

Motion to approve minutes as presented for October 17, 2023 by Chair Barbara Allen, seconded by 
Vice Chair Carol Johnson, vote 4-0 with 1 absent. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Facilities Vehicle 
 

Motion to purchase a 2019 Ranger XLT from Darling’s Augusta for the base price amount of 
$28,433 from Facilities Truck Reserve and to obtain warranty options for review by the 
Selectboard - by Selectperson Melanie Jewell, seconded by Selectperson Peter Rushton, vote 4-
0 with 1 absent. 

 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Rescue Funds (ARPA) 
 
Motion to fund $30,000 toward engineering costs for a new fire station; up to $7,500 for video 
streaming equipment at Center for All Seasons; up to $35,000 for a dry hydrant in the Village; up 
to $27,000 to provide ADA access at Center for All Seasons to the lake; $19,200 for emergency 
dam repair in the Village; $50,000 for the Friends of Belgrade Lakes Village parking lot project; 
with the balance and any remaining funds to be used for a new pickleball court at the Center for 
All Seasons by Vice Chair Carol Johnson, seconded by Selectperson Melanie Jewell, vote 5-0. 

 
Town Manager Performance Review 
 

Questions will be sent out Monday to department heads and committee chairs to be returned 
November 21 with an early December review date. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Report from Transfer Station Director and Committee Chair 
 

Interviews will begin soon to fill a position opening January of 2024. The committee is working to 
update the 3-, 5- and 10-year plan; working to update rules, SOP etc. of the transfer station at their next 
meeting November 13. 
 
Successful SHAPE program acceptance, good until 2026. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Emergency dam repair funding – the Town will allocate $19,200 of Rescue Funds toward the $40,000 
cost and asked the Dams Committee to reach out to the other partner towns for help with the balance; 
Liberty Builders can bill the remainder in January of 2024 which would allow the Town to utilize the new 
budget year to provide additional funding, if necessary. 
 
Abatements and supplementals – the Board will take up at their November 21 meeting. 
 
Well Claim Settlement Agreement 
 
Motion to approve the agreement as presented once the town’s attorney has reviewed and 
approved by Chair Barbara Allen, seconded by Vice Chair Carol Johnson, vote 5-0. 

 
WARRANTS  
 

Payroll Warrant 122 24,285.31 
Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to approve warrant 122 in the amount of $24,285.31, seconded by 
Selectperson Melanie Jewell, vote 5-0. 
 
AP Warrant 123 BMV 5,459.90 
Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to approve warrant 123 in the amount of $5,459.90, seconded by 
Selectperson Melanie Jewell, vote 5-0. 
 
AP Warrant 124 (truck hold) 1,000.00 
Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to approve warrant 124 in the amount of $1,000, seconded by 
Vice Chair Carol Johnson, vote 4-1 with Selectperson Daniel Newman opposing. 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Payroll Warrant 125  18,725.93 
Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to approve warrant 125 in the amount of $18,725.93, seconded by 
Selectperson Melanie Jewell, vote 5-0. 
 
AP Warrant 126 BMV 21,192.40 
Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to approve warrant 126 in the amount of $21,192.40, seconded by 
Vice Chair Carol Johnson, vote 5-0. 
 
AP Warrant 127 state payables 2,426.20 
Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to approve warrant 127 in the amount of $2,426.20, seconded by 
Vice Chair Carol Johnson, vote 5-0. 
 
AP Warrant 128 671,121.83 
Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to approve warrant 128 in the amount of $671,121.83, seconded 
by Vice Chair Carol Johnson, vote 5-0. 
 
AP Warrant 129 BMV 4,950.33 
Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to approve warrant 129 in the amount of $4,950.33, seconded by 
Vice Chair Carol Johnson, vote 5-0. 
 
Payroll Warrant 130 21,646.56 
Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to approve warrant 130 in the amount of $21,646.56, seconded by 
Selectperson Peter Rushton, vote 5-0. 
 

TOWN MANAGER REPORT 
 

• Transfer Station SHAPE program success! Congratulations to Ken and his crew! Well done! 
• CISA meeting December to review security at both the Town Office and Center for All Seasons 
• Scheduling interviews next week for the Transfer Station position 
• Have hired Victoria Alexander as the new Recreation Assistant, she will start soon. 
• Budget meeting November 19 
• Offices closed Friday in observance of Veterans Day 
• Offices closed November 23 and 24 in observance of Thanksgiving Day 
• Kudos to Mary and her elections/voting team for running a smooth and successful day of voting on 

November 7. They put through nearly 50 voters per hour! 
• RFP for Assessing services has been posted, we have not received any proposals yet – these are 

due by December 1 
• Attended labor law training in Augusta. 
• Attended comprehensive plan meeting October 25 
• We received a donation from the Mattson’s to have new blinds installed at the North Belgrade 

Community Center. 
 
Motion to adjourn the meeting by Chair Barbara Allen at 9:02 p.m., seconded by Vice Chair Carol 
Johnson, vote 5-0. 

 



Memo 
_______________________________ 

Appointments/Resignations 

 
Jacob Farmer to Board of Parks and Recreation, new 

Lorna Dee Nichols as Deputy Treasurer, new 

 





Memo 
_______________________________ 

MainePERS (Maine State Retirement) Presentation with Deanna Doyle 

 

At the request of the Board of Selectpersons, Deanna will Zoom your meeting to give a 

presentation on the retirement plan available for municipal employees – and to answer 

any questions you may have. The presentation is included in your Board packet for 

review prior to this meeting. 



Maine Public Employees Retirement System

presents

MainePERS Benefits Overview
for Town of Belgrade



Retirement System Benefits

Since 1942, MainePERS 
has helped public employees 

prepare for retirement

Defined 
Benefit 

Retirement 
Plan

Survivor
Benefits

Disability
Retirement

4Group Life
Insurance



Considerations

Participating Local District Consolidated Plan (PLD)
Defined Benefit Retirement Plans
Employers and Employees contribute a % of the gross salary of 
participating employees
MainePERS sets rates annually in December for next fiscal year
Oversight by PLD Advisory Committee and MainePERS Board of 
Trustees
Qualified Plan means compliance with Federal and State Law & 
Rule and IRS Regulations 
Funding – Contributions and Investments – Earnings Assumption 
– Level 
Recent Changes to Plan Structure Designed for Rate and Benefit 
Stability
• Cost Sharing between Employers, Employees (58% to 42%) 

and Retirees (COLA)
• Contribution Rate Caps 
• COLA Cap (2.5%)



Considerations

Impact on Social Security Benefits
Social Security is the Town’s primary plan (218 
Agreement with SSA)
MainePERS would optional for employees and in 
addition to Social Security

PLD Consolidated Plan and State 
Employee/Teacher Plan 

Separate Programs
Subject to Different Laws and Rules
Differences in Benefits and Provisions



Defined Benefit vs. Defined Contribution

Defined Benefit Plan 

Provides a lifetime monthly 
benefit where the amount is 
defined by:

– length of service 
– final average salary

And in some instances by
– age at retirement

Defined Contribution Plan

The value of your account is 
defined by the amount you 
contribute and your 
investment returns. (401a, 457, 
401k, 403(b), etc)



Defined Benefit Retirement Plans
Regular Retirement Plans
With a Normal Retirement Age of 65 or 60

Special Retirement Plans

 Provide the ability to retire at a younger age 

with no reduction

And/or a higher level of benefits



SPECIAL PLAN or REGULAR PLAN:

By accruing 25 years of service credit

OR

REGULAR PLAN ONLY:
Upon reaching Normal Retirement Age if

 As an Active member, the member 
has accrued at least 1 year of service 
credit immediately prior to retirement

 As an Inactive member, who is 
vested in the Retirement System

How do members qualify 
for benefits?



Regular Retirement Plan AC – General Government
 2.0% of the AFC for each year of service (25 Years = 50% of AFC)

 Employee Contribution Rates:

NRA of 65: 6.95%
NRA of 60: 7.70%

 Employer Contribution Rate:     10.2%

 Reduction for early retirement with 25 years or more:
 Factor reflects the true cost of early retirement to the Plan; and 
 Whether or not you choose to defer receiving COLA until you 

reach NRA

 Benefits are adjusted for the COLA annually, once eligible, up to 
2.5%. Eligible to begin receiving COLA the September after 
receiving at least 24 months of benefit payments.



Special Plan 3C For Firefighters and EMS Employees
 25 Years of 3C service = 66.67% of Average Final Compensation (AFC), 

regardless of age. (2.67% of AFC per year of 3C service up to 25 years)

 Additional 2% of the AFC for each year of service accrued over 25 years.

 Employee Contribution Rate: 9.3%

 Employer Contribution Rate: 12.8%

 Benefits are adjusted for the COLA annually, once eligible, up to 
2.5%. Eligible to begin receiving COLA the September after 
receiving at least 24 months of benefit payments.

 Members who do not qualify to retire under the Special Plan may 
still qualify for benefits under the Regular Plan



Example: Average Final Compensation (AFC)

• We use the 3 highest years of earnings during your membership in 
the PLD Consolidated Plan to calculate your AFC for this plan.

• The AFC calculation under the State/Teacher Plan is subject to 
limitations

Year Service in Years Earnings

2018 1.0000 $ 45,000
2019 1.0000 $ 50,000
2020 1.0000 $ 55,000

Total Earnings for AFC Period: $150,000
÷ 3

Average Final Compensation = $  50,000



EX
AM

PL
E

Benefit Calculation Examples
EXAMPLES for Full Benefits

Average Final Compensation (AFC):  $50,000
Creditable Service: 27 years of service

Regular Plan AC (at Normal Retirement Age (65/60)
AFC $50,000 x 0.02 x 25 years = $25,000 per year
AFC $50,000 x 0.02 x 2 years = +$  2,000 per year

Annual Full Benefit $27,000 

Special Plan 3C (At ANY Age)
AFC $50,000 x 0.0267 x 25 years = $33,375 per year
AFC $50,000 x 0.02 x  2 years  =  + $  2,000 per year

Annual Full Benefit $35,375 



Will I be able to live on my defined benefit? 

Upon retiring at Normal 
Retirement Age under the 
Regular Plan with 25 years of 
service credit, the defined 
benefit under the Full Benefit 
Option would be 50% of a 
member’s average annual 
income.

There are ways employees can 
supplement their MainePERS
benefits – The key is to start 
NOW!

Ways to Supplement:

 Social Security or other 
Federal Pension Benefits

 Accrue MainePERS service 
credit in excess of 25 years

 Personal Retirement 
Savings Accounts

An employee will need 
75%–90% of their 
current income to 
maintain their standard 
of living in retirement.



457 or 401a Plan to supplement Defined Benefit Plan

 Roth and Traditional options available in 457

 Low cost Vanguard Funds

 Easy investment selection

 MainePERS commitment to customer service

 Comprehensive planning for retirement

MainePERS
Deferred Compensation/

Defined Contribution Program



Portability within the PLD 
Consolidated Retirement Plan

Employment Changes Matter!

Leaving their account with 
MainePERS is:

 mandatory if their new 
employment is in a MainePERS-
covered position.

 optional if their new employment 
is not covered by MainePERS.

What are options
if an employee changes jobs before 

they retire?



Can Employees get a refund or a loan from their contributions?

Loan?  No. 
A member cannot borrow from or 
against contributions made to their 
MainePERS defined benefit plan. 

Refund?  Yes. 
If the employee has terminated all 
MainePERS-covered employment, 
they may apply for a full refund of 
their accumulated contributions.



If an employee elects to join 
MainePERS, they will be required to 
participate in MainePERS whenever
they are employed by the Town

*If they elect not to join MainePERS, 
they can never participate as an 
employee of the Town except as 
allowed by the limited period open 
enrollment provision

* Employees with less than five 
years of employment, who initially 
decline, can join during annual 
open enrollment periods until they 
have been employed for 5 years

An Election to Join 
MainePERS is FINAL!*



MainePERS - Resources

Benefit Estimator:

Annual Statements:

On-demand videos:

Ready to Retire Sessions:



? ?? ? ?
?



» Publications and Newsletters
» Laws, Rules and Legislation
» Retirement Session Info
» Downloadable Forms
» Frequently Asked Questions
» Investments Information
» Member Booklets
» Employer Updates 

and more!

www.mainepers.org



MainePERS, P.O. Box 349, Augusta, ME 04332-0349

Thank you for attending 
today's session! 

If you have additional questions, 
please contact us.

Telephone: (207) 512-3100

Toll free: (800) 451-9800

TTY: (207) 512-3102



Memo 
_______________________________ 

Road Name Change Request 

 

Request from Pam and Mark Heuberger of Fralich Road to change the road name to 

Osprey Point Pvt. (see attached letter of request). 

 

Also included is the Town of Belgrade Addressing Ordinance, along with a current list of 

road names for your review as E911 prohibits similar road names. 

































Memo 
_______________________________ 

Facilities Equipment Needs 

 
Facilities Maintenance Director Cory Alexander will be present to discuss upcoming 

equipment needs. 



Memo 
_______________________________ 

Abatements / Supplementals 

 

Our contracted Assessing Agent has compiled a list of abatements and supplements for 

the Board’s review and approval. 

































Memo 
_______________________________ 

Municipal Resolution – Diversity Declaration 

 
A Town of Belgrade Diversity Declaration is included for the Board’s review and 

consideration. 





Memo 
_______________________________ 

Warrants 

  

AP warrant 131 $47,633.00 

BMV warrant 132 $2,429.57 

Payroll warrant 133 $20,453.35 

Payroll warrant 134 $123.03 

AP warrant 135 $92,819.00 

BMV warrant 136 

Payroll warrant 137 

 









































November 21, 2023 

TM Report__________________________________________________ 

 

• We have scheduled refresher training for TRIO WEB in January 
with a go live date of February 27, 2024. 

• We have conducted interviews for the open posi�on at the 
Transfer Sta�on and have hired Chris Cogswell. 

• Reminder that facili�es are closed November 23 and 24 in 
observance of Thanksgiving Day. 

• Deadline to have secret ballot warrant ar�cles completed is 
January 17, 2024. 

• Next budget work session is December 11 at 6 p.m. to review 
warrant ar�cles. 

 

 

 


	Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
	Open Meeting
	DRAFT MINUTES November 8 Belgrade Selectboard Meeting.pdf
	In attendance: Chair Barbara Allen, Vice Chair Carol Johnson, Selectperson Melanie Jewell, Selectperson Peter Rushton, Kathy Atkinson, Diane Oliver, Lynn Matson, Phyllis Matson, Christine Emmons, Eric Houglund, Bruce Galouch, Craig Alexander, Ken Sche...
	Remote participants: Richard Bourne, Cory Alexander.
	Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance at 6:30 p.m. by Chair Barbara Allen.
	Open Meeting

	MainePERS Benefits Overview for Town of Belgrade Select Board.pdf
	�����MainePERS Benefits Overview� for Town of Belgrade�
	Slide Number 2
	Considerations
	Considerations
	Defined Benefit vs. Defined Contribution
	Defined Benefit Retirement Plans
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Example: Average Final Compensation (AFC)
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	MainePERS  -  Resources
	Questions
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20

	memo warrants.pdf
	Memo




